
Please call office at 651-560-2053 or email susan.cerwinske.wabashaswcd@gmail.com  if you 
have any questions on attending physically or by phone. 
We have call-in capabilities for up to 10 people. Phone# 651-560-1088 Access code # 0147478#    
If you plan on attending in person and are not fully vaccinated, wearing a mask and social 
distancing will be required. 

   
 

Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District  
District Regular Board Meeting 

October 28, 2021 
8:15 a.m.  

County Board Room 
625 Jefferson Ave. 

 
I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER – 

  
II. PLEDGE ALLEGIANCE 

III. AGENDA 

Add to agenda under new business letter L: FY 2022 State of MN BWSR Clean Water Fund 
SWCD Capacity Program & Buffer Law Implementation Program Grant Agreement  
 

IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS   
Comments limited to 5 minutes per speaker 

 
V. CONSENT AGENDA -Board Action 

A. Lars Polson AgBMP Loan for a Bedding Chopper in the amount of $20,750.00 
B. Lars Polson AgBMP Loan for a Used Skid Steer in the amount of $11,000.00 
C. Conservation Corps MN & IA Invoice# 12864 in the amount of $1,102.50 for 

Bohemian Knotweed Management at Hammond Creek 9/1 – 9/30/2021. 
Funding from FY21 MDA Knotweed Grant 

VI. SECRETARY’S REPORT 
A. September 23, 2021 Meeting Minutes-Board Action 

 
VII. TREASURER’S REPORT:   

A. District Financial Statements-Board Action 
  

VIII. PAYMENT OF MONTHLY BILLS 
A. Monthly Bills in the amount of $88,038.01-Board Action    

 
IX. DISTRICT REPORTS 

A. Chair Report – Lynn Zabel 
B. County Commissioner – Bob Walkes  
C. District Manager Report – Terri Peters   
D. NRCS Report – John Benjamin – Report in Packet 
E. District Technician Report- Matt Kempinger – Report in Packet 

mailto:susan.cerwinske.wabashaswcd@gmail.com


F. Ecological Technician Report – Henry Stelten – Report in Packet 
G. Bookkeeper/Administrative Assistant -Sue Cerwinske – Report in Packet 

X. OLD BUSINESS 
A. Conservation Project – Lynn Zabel 
B. Change Meeting Dates for November and December to the third Thursday of the 

month instead of fourth.  November 18, 2021 and December 16, 2021 – Board 
Action 

C. MASWCD 2021 Resolutions -Board Discussion 
D. SWCD Board Vacancy Update.  Candidates?  Application period open until 

November 15th – Board Discussion 
 

XI. NEW BUSINESS 
A. National Association of Conservation Districts dues for 2022 – Recommend at least 

Bronze Level ($101 - $500.00) – Board Action 
($350.00 paid for 2021) 

B. Cancel Bob Sloan Contract# 20-WWDWP-1 for cover crops in the amount of 
$2,700.00 (Timing does not work for him) – Board Action 

C. Approve Grant Amendment for Grant ID# P18-7145, 2018 SWCD Local Capacity 
Services to change expiration date to 12-31-2022 and reporting date to 2-21-2023 - 
Board Action 
(FY 2018 State of MN BWSR 2018/2019 SWCD Programs and Operations Grants -
Wabasha SWCD Grant Amendment) 

D. MASWCD 2021 Annual Convention & Trade Show Dec. 12 – 14, 2021 at the 
The Doubletree Hotel, Bloomington, MN.  Who will be attending? Silent Auction 
donations – Board Discussion/Action 

E. Approve Mike Rahman voucher payment for Contract# 19-DWP-CC-2 in the amount 
of $900.00 for practice 340 cover crops 2nd year – Board Action 
(Funding source FY19 Drinking Water Protection in SE MN) 

F. Approve White Barn Acres LLC voucher payment for Contract# 21-Capacity-3 in the 
amount of $961.47 for practice 578 stream crossing – Board Action 
(Funding source FY21 Capacity) 

G. Approve Rachel Walkes Contract# 21-Capacity-5 in the amount of $2,700.00 for 
practice 340 Cover Crops – Board Action 
Funding source FY21 Capacity 

H. Approve Eugene Schnell Amendment for Contract# 20-Capacity-5 to change 
expiration date to 6/30/22, contingent on approval of amendment of P18-7145 
SWCD Local Capacity Services to extend expiration date to 12/31/22 – Board Action 

I. District State Cost Share Policy for Approval – Board Action 
J. Personnel Policy – Board Discussion/Action 

 



K. Approve Steve McNallan voucher payment for Contract# 17-CAP-WS-13 in the 
amount of $1,000.00 for Well Decommissioning -Board Action 
(Funding source FY18 Capacity) 

L. FY 2022 State of MN BWSR Clean Water Fund SWCD Capacity Program & Buffer Law 
Implementation Program Grant Agreement - Board Action/Signature 
 

M. Upcoming Events: 
i. MASWCD resolution ballot deadline for submittal is November 1, 2021  

 

XII. Board Reports 
A. Whitewater JPB – Lynn 
B. Zumbro 1W1P – Larry  
C. WinLac 1W1P - Lynn 
D. SE SWCD Technical Support JPB – Larry 
E. County Board Meeting – Larry (alternate Sharleen) 
F. Hiawatha Valley RC&D – Lynn 

 
XIII. Close Regular Board Meeting to go into Closed Session – Board Action 
XIV. Open Session for Health Insurance Discussion – Board Action 
XV. Close Session – Board Action 
XVI. Open Regular Session – Board Action 
XVII. New Business 

A. MN PEIP Health Insurance renewal and County Benefits – Dental, Life and Long-term 
disability –Board Action on Closed Session Meeting Decisions 
 

XVIII. Adjourn – Board Action 
                                                    









Please call office at 651-560-2053 or email susan.cerwinske.wabashaswcd@gmail.com  if you 
have any questions on attending physically or by phone. 
We have call-in capabilities for up to 10 people. Phone# 651-560-1088 Access code # 0147478#    
If you plan on attending in person and are not fully vaccinated, wearing a mask and social 
distancing will be required. 

   
 

Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District  
District Regular Board Meeting 

September 23, 2021 
8:15 a.m.  

County Board Room 
625 Jefferson Ave. 

 
I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER – 

  
II. PLEDGE ALLEGIANCE 

III. AGENDA 

Motioned by Ross and seconded by Klennert to approve the Agenda. 
Affirmative: Zabel, Theismann, Klennert, Ross 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 
 

IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS   
Comments limited to 5 minutes per speaker 

 
V. CONSENT AGENDA -Board Action 

A.  

VI. SECRETARY’S REPORT 
A. August 26, 2021 Meeting Minutes-Board Action 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Theismann to approve the August 26, 2021 
Meeting Minutes 
Affirmative: Zabel, Theismann, Klennert, Ross 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 

 
VII. TREASURER’S REPORT:   

A. District Financial Statements-Board Action 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Ross to approve the District Financial 
Statements. 
Affirmative: Zabel, Theismann, Klennert, Ross 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 
B. Program Record – Board Action 

 
 

mailto:susan.cerwinske.wabashaswcd@gmail.com


Motioned by Theismann and seconded by Ross to table the Program Record 
Affirmative: Zabel, Theismann, Klennert, Ross 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 

  
VIII. PAYMENT OF MONTHLY BILLS 

A. Monthly Bills in the amount of $21,870.18 -Board Action   
Two additional checks added last minute for a total of $21,976.71 
Motioned by Theismann and seconded by Klennert to approve payment of the monthly 
bills in the amount of $21,976.71 
Affirmative: Zabel, Theismann, Klennert, Ross 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 

 
IX. DISTRICT REPORTS 

A. Chair Report  
B. County Commissioner – Bob Walkes  
Went to WinLac kickoff meeting. 
Middle of setting up preliminary budget.  Funds for SWCD will stay the same amount 
for 2022 as it was in 2021.  Adopted preliminary 3% levy. 
C. District Manager Report – Terri Peters 
Working with partners for funding 
Went to Prairie Strip Demo Field Day at Mower County 
1W1P WinLac Kickoff 
Zumbro Falls on Oak issues 
SE Landscape Tour next Monday 
Gorman Creek 
Zumbro plan to area board Oct. 7th 
Joint Area 7 SE MACDE and SE MASWD Meeting at Yak Farm in Welch 
 
D. NRCS Report – John Benjamin – Report in Packet and gave report during meeting. 

 
• Terry Helbig called in to give his medical update and to submit his resignation 

from the SWCD board for District 5 which includes Chair position. 
 

E. District Technician Report- Matt Kempinger – Report in Packet 
F. Ecological Technician Report – Henry Stelten – Report in Packet 
G. Bookkeeper/Administrative Assistant -Sue Cerwinske – Gave report during meeting 

X. OLD BUSINESS 
A. Conservation Project – Lynn Zabel 

Lynn reported other news - University of MN is coming out to his farm to plant an 
acre plot on tilled land.  Will plant varieties of rye.  Doing 300 plots over the state. 

XI. NEW BUSINESS 
A. Approve Prairie Ridge Farm – David Zabel Contract# 21-CS-2 for 410 Grade 

Stabilization and 412 Grassed Waterway in the amount of $9,505.00. 



Funding sources FY21 State Cost Share $7,168.30 and FY20 State Cost Share 
$2,336.70 – Board Action 
(Total project $19,340.00. MAWQCP funding as well on top of cost share.) 
Motioned by Theismann and seconded by Klennert to approve Prairie Farm 
Contract# 21-CS-2 for 410 Grade Stabilization and 412 Grassed Waterway in the 
amount of $9,505.00. Funding sources FY21 State Cost Share $7,168.30 and FY20 
State Cost Share $2,336.70.  
Affirmative: Zabel, Theismann, Klennert, Ross 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 
 

B. Approve John & Shar Yorde Contract# 19-DWP-WS-8 for - Well Sealing (351 Well 
Decommissioning) in the amount of $1,500.00.  Funding Source FY19 Drinking Water 
Protection – Board Action 
(Regional grant that Olmsted SWCD is administering) 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Ross to approve John & Shar Yorde 
Contract# 19-DWP-WS-8 for Well Sealing (351 Well Decommissioning) in the 
amount of $1,500.00.  Funding source FY19 Drinking Water Protection. 
Affirmative: Zabel, Theismann, Klennert, Ross 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 
 

C. MASWCD 2021 Resolutions Packet 
Discussed resolutions sheet due date back to MASWCD by November 1st. 
Sue will email packets to you.  Copies in office for anyone, if needed. 
 

D. Leadership for Midwestern Watersheds Event – Registration for Nov. 3-4 at Prairie 
du Chien, Wi for Terri and Henry.  $100.00 each plus $89.00 per room for hotel – 
Board Action 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Ross to approve Terri and Henry attending 
the Leadership for Midwestern Watersheds Event on Nov. 3rd – 4th at Prairie du 
Chien, WI.  ($110.00 registration fee each, plus hotel rooms for two nights) 
Affirmative: Zabel, Theismann, Klennert, Ross 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 
 

E. Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District Board Vacancy – Board Action 
Motioned by Theismann and seconded by Ross to accept Terry Helbig’s resignation 
due to health issues. 
Affirmative: Zabel, Theismann, Klennert, Ross 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 



 
Discussion:  How to announce that there is an opening for District 5 to see if 
anyone interested.   Board members should call people interested.  The Board will 
need to decide how to hire.  Larry has a letter from an interested individual that he 
will send copies to all other Board members.   Names brought up as possibilities, 
Ed Bauman or Pete Holmstad.  Do we want to advertise in the Lake City Graphic or 
Shopper and on also on our website? 
 
Motioned by Theismann and seconded by Klennert to put an article in the Lake 
City Graphic and Shopper announcing Board opening for District 5. 
Affirmative: Zabel, Theismann, Klennert, Ross 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 
 

F. Discussion on Board positions – Board Action 
Motioned by Theismann and seconded by Ross to elect Lynn Zabel to take the 
SWCD Chair position with Terry Helbig’s resignation.   Lynn accepted. 
Affirmative: Theismann, Klennert, Ross 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 
 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Theismann to elect Chet Ross to be 
Co-Chair  
Affirmative: Zabel, Klennert, Ross 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 
 

G. Approve Valyn Adler Contract# 21-Capacity-4 for practice 638 -Water & Sediment 
Control Basin in the amount of $6,423.63.  Funding Source FY21 Capacity – Board 
Action    (EQIP also to get to $15,000.00) 
Motioned by Theismann and seconded by Ross to approve Valyn Adler Contract# 
21-Capacity-4 for practice 638-Water & Sediment Control Basin in the amount of 
$6,423.63.  Funding source FY21 Capacity 
Affirmative: Zabel, Theismann, Klennert, Ross 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 
 

H. Upcoming Events: 
i. BWSR Academy Oct. 26 – Oct. 28, 2021 – Online  

XII. Board Reports 
A. Whitewater JPB, Lynn – No Report 



B. Zumbro 1W1P, Larry – No Report 
C. WinLac 1W1P – Lynn 

Lynn reported that there was the aSeptember 20th kickoff meeting.  Quite a few 
people showed up with comments.   

D. SE SWCD Technical Support JPB, Larry - No Report 
E. County Board Meeting – Larry (alternate Sharleen 

Larry reported that Terri gave a report to the County Commissioners at the 
meeting. 
County Board is working on the 2022 budget.  SWCD funding will remain the same 
as 2021. 

F. Hiawatha Valley RC&D, Lynn – No Report - No Meeting 
 
 

XIII. Adjourn – Board Action 
Motioned by Theismann and seconded by Klennert to adjourn the meeting 
At 9:45 am 
Affirmative: Zabel, Theismann, Klennert, Ross 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 
 
 
 
 
      Respectively Submitted By: 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Larry Theismann, Secretary 
        

                                                    



Sep 30, 21

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
Money Market- Bank of Alma 76,905.44
Money Market WNB Financial 7,396.86
Peoples State Bank Money Market 357,061.03
Petty Cash 122.62
WNB Financial 12,743.53

Total Checking/Savings 454,229.48

Total Current Assets 454,229.48

TOTAL ASSETS 454,229.48

LIABILITIES & EQUITY 0.00

8:19 AM Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District
10/04/21 Cash Balances
Accrual Basis As of September 30, 2021

Page 1



Sep 30, 21

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
Money Market- Bank of Alma 76,905.44
Money Market WNB Financial 7,396.86
Peoples State Bank Money Market 357,061.03
Petty Cash 122.62
WNB Financial 12,743.53

Total Checking/Savings 454,229.48

Accounts Receivable
11000 · Accounts Receivable 9.00

Total Accounts Receivable 9.00

Other Current Assets
12000 · Undeposited Funds 37.57

Total Other Current Assets 37.57

Total Current Assets 454,276.05

Fixed Assets
15000 · Furniture and Equipment

Computer 4,369.00
Laptops for Distrcit Techs (2) 3,149.22
Samsung Tablets 1,548.69
15000 · Furniture and Equipment - Other 104,323.00

Total 15000 · Furniture and Equipment 113,389.91

17000 · Accumulated Depreciation -102,935.42

Total Fixed Assets 10,454.49

Other Assets
Prepaid Items

Prepaid Rent 920.43

Total Prepaid Items 920.43

Total Other Assets 920.43

TOTAL ASSETS 465,650.97

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

20000 · Accounts Payable 3,481.94

Total Accounts Payable 3,481.94

Other Current Liabilities
Allowance for Unemployment Reim 1,581.86
Deferred Revenue

AIS 76,315.06
FY18 Capacity 18,175.00
FY19 Capacity 14,165.39
FY19 Well Seal Grant 14,576.30
FY20 Buffer Initiative 14,118.56
FY20 Capacity 9,555.51
FY20 CWMA 7,813.92
FY20 State Cost share 5,517.29
FY21 Buffer Initiative 16,903.00
FY21 Capacity 105,888.06
FY21 Conservation Delivery 6,020.65
FY21 LWM 12,480.99
FY21 State Cost Share 15,401.00
FY21 WCA 10,112.76

Total Deferred Revenue 327,043.49

1:04 PM Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District
10/13/21 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of September 30, 2021

Page 1



Sep 30, 21

2110 · Direct Deposit Liabilities -5,636.51
24000 · Payroll Liabilities 1,192.99
25500 · Sales Tax Payable 581.57

Total Other Current Liabilities 324,763.40

Total Current Liabilities 328,245.34

Total Liabilities 328,245.34

Equity
Fund Balance- Restatement 47,943.10
Fund Balance Designated 31,903.30
Investment in Capital Assets 10,454.49
30000 · Opening Balance Equity 649.89
32000 · Owners Equity 129,950.95
Net Income -83,496.10

Total Equity 137,405.63

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 465,650.97

1:04 PM Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District
10/13/21 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of September 30, 2021

Page 2



Sep 21

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

Charges for Services
Plat Book Sales 70.00
Wetlands 400.00

Total Charges for Services 470.00

Intergovernmental Revenues
State

FY21 319 NPS Grant (Whitewater) 2,084.13
MAWQCP 8,799.44

Total State 10,883.57

Total Intergovernmental Revenues 10,883.57

Total Income 11,353.57

Gross Profit 11,353.57

Expense
District Operations

Other Services and Charges
Building Rent 920.43
Conferences and Conventions 270.00
Employee Education and Training 60.00
Internet Expense 70.95
Professional Expenses

Audit Fees 3,600.00

Total Professional Expenses 3,600.00

Vehicle Expenses
Chevrolet Silverado Vehicle Exp 112.41
Hyundia Tucson Vehicle Expense 36.32

Total Vehicle Expenses 148.73

Total Other Services and Charges 5,070.11

Personnel Services
Employee Salary Permanent 15,865.33
Employer HSA contributions 2,625.00
Employer Life and Health

66000 · Payroll Expenses 5,948.46
Employer Life and Health - Other 22.00

Total Employer Life and Health 5,970.46

Employer Share FICA 1,059.93
Employer Share Medicare 247.86
Employer Share PERA 1,280.52

Total Personnel Services 27,049.10

Total District Operations 32,119.21

Project Expenditures
State

FY20 MPCA SWAG MWL 27.17
FY21 319 NPS Grant (Whitewater) 2,084.13
FY21 Buffer Law Implementation 740.00
FY21 Capacity 89.50
LWM NRBG 94.64
MAWQCP Administration 8,799.44

Total State 11,834.88

Total Project Expenditures 11,834.88

Total Expense 43,954.09

Net Ordinary Income -32,600.52

1:06 PM Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District
10/13/21 Profit & Loss
Cash Basis September 2021

Page 1



Sep 21

Other Income/Expense
Other Income

Interest Income
Interest Earnings MM's 138.19

Total Interest Income 138.19

Total Other Income 138.19

Net Other Income 138.19

Net Income -32,462.33

1:06 PM Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District
10/13/21 Profit & Loss
Cash Basis September 2021

Page 2





NRCS Field Office Report 
9/23/21 

John Benjamin 
 

Current office standing 

• Bill and I are working out of the office every day.  
• All non-duty stationed employees have decided not to resume working from the office on occasion 

until COVID restrictions are eased.  This is Brian DeVetter, Dean Thomas, etc. 
• FPAC policy is, masks required for all employees and visitors.  All employees and contractors need 

to be vaccinated by Nov. 22nd. 
• Office staffing is still 50% capacity and maximum telework is encouraged. 

CSP (Conservation Stewardship Program) 

• FY22 Assessment & Ranking deadline, Nov. 5th 
• 6 Renewal applications, All prioritized high 
• 14 Active contracts 
• FY22 classic Application Deadline Feb. 4th 
• FY22 MRBI-West Indian Creek application deadline Feb.4th 
• FY23 renewal application deadline March 25th  

EQIP (Environmental Quality Incentive Program)  

• 21 EQIP applications deferred to FY22 signup period, not determined yet 
• 6 EQIP applications in pending status 
• 15 Active EQIP contracts, 2 contracts about to be paid on and completed 
• MRBI-West Indian Creek fund pool availible 

RCPP-EQIP (Regional Conservation Partnership Program- EQIP) 

• 5 RCPP-EQIP active contracts 
• No applications submitted currently 

RCPP (Regional Conservation Partnership Program) 
Land Management fund through MAWQCP sign up announced 

• Application deadline was June 4th 
• 3 applications submitted and ranked. 
• No preapproved applications currently 

CRP (Conservation Reserve Program)  

113 Expiring contract reviews for FY22 
36 reviews completed so far. 



Monthly Report – October 
Matt Kempinger 
 
 

Training 
 

• BWSR Academy 
o Contract Policy, Water Storage, Soil Health, WCA, Drinking Water Protection 

 
Projects  
 

• Construction monitoring for 2 Grade Stabilization Structures 

• Closed out 1 waterway project 

• Closed out 1 feedlot project 

• Investigated 1 future Grade Stabilization Structure site 

• Processing 4 WCA Joint Applications 

• Staking and construction monitoring for 1 feedlot projects 

• Completed voucher for 1 stream crossing project 

• Worked on soil borings for Grade Stabilization Project 

• Followed up with various landowners that have ongoing projects  

• Stream restoration, drafting, permitting, and landowner discussion 

• Investigated one problematic sinkhole site 

• Investigated 2 silage leachate resource concern sites 
 

 
Others 
 

• Assisted 2 landowner in applying for MAWQCP certification  

• Assisted 4 Landowners with EQIP applications 

• Informed 3 landowners about the MAWQCP program 

• Answered general resource questions from public and assisted where possible 

• Aided and advised citizens regarding WCA concerns  

• Provided technical assistance for wetland considerations 

• Participated in MPCA surface water monitoring  

• Prepare for WCA TEP 

• Buffer Compliance Monitoring 
 

 



Work Summary October 2021 

Henry Stelten 

 

• Cover crop contracts, seeding plans, verification, meetings 

• NF Zumbro at Mazeppa Phase 2 communications 

• Started Buffer Law Compliance checks and BuffCat work 

• Watopa travel lanes & water project 

• Planning with Livestock Producers training w/Dean Thomas & Lance Smith 

• Landowner meetings and planning for potential projects (silvopasture, grade stabs, brush 

management, cover crops, wetland concerns) 

• 2021-2022 Tree Order – trees ordered, form updated and revised, new/revised postcard, 

new/revised order tracker (just waiting on DNR confirmation so we can release form and take 

orders) 



Sue: 

MAWQCP – Promo Funds Completion Reports and Invoices 
MNPEIP Health Insurance  
Personnel Handbook 
Invoicing for 3rd Qtr:  DNR for Gorman Creek and North Fork Zumbro 
                                       Whitewater JPB for MPCA SWAG 
                                       Whitewater Drinking Water Protection 
                                       319 Small Feedlot 
                                       Lower Mississippi Feed Lot RCPP 
                                       Volunteer Nitrate Monitoring 
                                       FY19 Drinking Water Protection SE MN 
                                       FY20 Safe Drinking Water for Private Well Users 
                                       MDA for MAWQCP Staff time and SWCD’s reimbursement 
 
Quarterly Payroll Reporting 
Website stories update 
Other Normal Monthly Responsibilties 















2018/2019 SWCD Programs and Operations Grants - Wabasha SWCD                                                                                                                                            
1 
 

 
 

FY 2018 STATE OF MINNESOTA 
BOARD OF WATER and SOIL RESOURCES 

2018/2019 SWCD Programs and Operations Grants - Wabasha SWCD 
GRANT AMENDMENT 

 
Grant Agreement Start Date: 1/3/2018 
Original Grant Agreement Expiration Date: 12/31/2020 
Original Agreement Amount: $190,040.00  

 
This amendment is by and between the State of Minnesota, through its Board of Water and Soil Resources (“Board”) and 
Wabasha SWCD, 611 Broadway Avenue, Suite 10, Wabasha, MN 55981 (“Grantee”). 
 

Recitals 
1.  The Board has a Grant Agreement with the Grantee identified as the 2018/2019 SWCD Programs and Operations 

Grants - Wabasha SWCD, PO # 3000008415, for the following grants:  
 

Grant ID Grant Title Previous 
Expiration Date 

Amended 
Expiration 
Date 

Previous 
Award 
Amount 

Amended 
Award Amount 

P18-1794 2018 - Conservation Delivery (Wabasha 
SWCD)  

12/31/2020  $19,619.00  

P19-8145 2019 - Conservation Delivery (Wabasha 
SWCD)  

12/31/2020  $19,619.00  

P19-2247 2019 - State Cost-Share Fund (Wabasha 
SWCD)  

12/31/2020  $15,401.00  

P18-7145 2018 - SWCD Local Capacity Services 
(Wabasha SWCD)  

12/31/2021 12/31/2022 $100,000.00  

P18-3662 2018 - Buffer Law (Wabasha SWCD)  12/31/2020  $20,000.00  

P18-2837 2018 - State Cost-Share Fund (Wabasha 
SWCD)  

12/31/2020  $15,401.00  

 
 
2.  The Wabasha SWCD requests an extension for 2018 - SWCD Local Capacity Services (Wabasha SWCD) to 12/31/2022 

for the purpose of granting additional time for the completion of a recently encumbered project using slippage funds. 
The landowner missed the seeding deadline and therefore the project will need to be completed in the spring of 
2022. 

3.  Grant reporting must be completed by 2/1/2023 or within 30 days of work completion, whichever comes first. 
4.   The Board and Soil and Water Conservation District are willing to amend the Original Contract as stated below. 

 
 Contract Amendment 

REVISION 1.   1. Term of Grant Agreement 
1.2 EXPIRATION DATE: is amended as follows:  

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2022, or until all obligations have been satisfactorily fulfilled, 
whichever comes first.   

REVISION 2.   2. Grantee’s Duties  
2.2.3 REPORTING: is amended as follows:  

The Grantee will submit a final progress report to the Board by February 1, 2022 February 1, 
2023, or within 30 days of expenditure of all grant funds, whichever occurs sooner. Information 

 



2018/2019 SWCD Programs and Operations Grants - Wabasha SWCD                                                                                                                                            
2 
 

provided must conform to the requirements and formats set by the Board.  
 
 

 Except as amended herein, the terms and conditions of the Original Grant Agreement remain in full force and effect.  
 
 
APPROVED: 

Wabasha SWCD Board of Water and Soil Resources 

By:          _____________________________________ By:      _____________________________________ 

Title:      _____________________________________ Title:   _____________________________________ 

Date:     _____________________________________ Date:   _____________________________________ 

 

    
 
 









































WABASHA SWCD LOCAL COST SHARE POLICY 

 

Staff Credentials 

The Wabasha Soil & Water Conservation District (District) will ensure staff has the necessary skill and training 
to install and maintain projects according to standards and specifications.  Building credentials and maintaining 
or seeking certifications to retain knowledgeable staff is a high priority of the District.  Budget allocation 
determined annually according to program work plans. 

Technical expertise of the District includes: 

● 1 Staff with USDA – Natural Resources Conservation Service Job Approval Authority under Ecological 
and/or Engineering Science and 2 district technicians actively working towards Job Approval Authority. 

When professional engineering is required or specific conservation practices require expertise above current 
technical capacity, the District will utilize professional engineers or consultants, staff from Minnesota 
Department of Natural Resources, Minnesota Pollution Control Agency, USDA – Natural Resources 
Conservation Service (NRCS), the Technical Service Area Joint Powers Board and The Nature Conservancy, 
and others where appropriate. 

Delegation 

Landowner contracts for the installation of conservation practices and supporting project documents such as 
cost share vouchers will be signed by the Technical Representative, the District Board Chair (as needed) and 
the landowner (and land occupier). 

Noncompliance 

Cost Share contract noncompliance will be reviewed by the District Board in consultation with the District 
Manager and Technical Staff.  Resolution with the landowner will be attempted through corrective actions or 
alternative avenues. Unresolved issues that the District Board is not able to address will be taken to the County 
attorney for resolution. 

General Policies Applied to all Funding Programs (including nonstructural policies) 

● All funding program contracts and requests for payment require the approval of the District Board of 
Supervisors (Board). 

● All funding programs are subject to fund availability and may be discontinued or subject to program policy 
revisions by the District Board as it deems appropriate. 

● The landowner shall allow District staff access to property for which the installed conservation practice is 
located during the life of the contract.  The installed practice will be subject to periodic inspections by District 
staff. 

● Applicants are responsible to submit application forms, project plans and cost estimates as requested by the 
District in sufficient detail for the District to complete its review. 

●Unless specified otherwise by Minnesota prevailing wage statutes, the value of labor, equipment, materials 
and/or services that are proposed to be provided by the applicant to complete the project, shall be estimated 
at: 

1. Cost-Share Rates – Up to 75% of actual cost of eligible structural practices for State Cost Share 
and Local Capacity Services Cost-Share. If funded with other program funding or multiple programs 
that allow for greater cost share amounts (example: 319 funds for West Indian Creek Watershed or 
other similar cases), cost share amounts will follow guidelines and policy for that program.  



2. General Labor rate will be based on the most current Iowa Farm Custom Rate Survey for labor 
rates. (Date, times and activity must be documented) 

3. Labor rate for chainsaw, brush cutting, etc. will follow the general labor rate from the most recent 
Iowa Farm Custom Rate Survey.  (Date, times and activity must be documented) 

4. Labor rate of $50 per cubic yard for concrete work. 
5. Heavy equipment operation such as skid steers, tractors, backhoes, and scrapers (including labor) 

at $60 per hour.  (Date, times and activity must be documented) 
6. Materials:  $8 per ton for gravel, $5 per yard for sand. 
7. Professional or semi-professional services, i.e. engineering, contracting for prescribed burns, labor 

rate up to $75 per hour.  (Date, times and activity must be documented)  
8. CWMA funds may be approved for 314 Brush Management and 315 Herbaceous Weed Control up 

to $300/acre, not to exceed 75% of total project cost, and will be capped at $2,000 per project to 
ensure availability of cost-share to multiple landowners annually. Appropriate contracted rates up to 
the limits will be determined upon technical evaluation by SWCD staff of site conditions and project 
goals and will be subject to Board approval. 

9. Vegetative plantings (including site prep and native seed used) will have a minimum payment of 
$200/acre depending on technical evaluation of the site and Board approval. 

10. 50% of eligible cost up to $1,000 per Well Decommissioning (following local well-sealing 
policy/checklist). 

11. Flat rate payment for Non-Structural land practices (NLMP):  
a. $30/acre for Cover Crop planting, 30 acres maximum, 3-year contract using State Cost 

Share Funds or Capacity Funding alone. Policies and guidelines for alternative grant funds 
and programs will be followed. 

b. Cover crop payments will be made annually following technical certification of planting and 
assurance that terms of planting have been met. Board may consider reasonable alternative 
schedule if planting does not occur due to weather if needed to meet grant guidelines. 

c. Cover crop rotations may be allowed if deemed technically acceptable for situation, such as 
canning crop rotations. 

d. We plan to use the standard BWSR Practice Site Inspection Form from the BWSR website 
on follow-up inspections. Operation and Maintenance procedures will follow the NRCS 
standards for the applicable practice. For Cover Crop (340} an operator: 1.} should control 
growth of the cover crop to reduce competition from volunteer plants and-shading, 2.) 
control weeds in the cover crop by mowing or herbicide application, 3.) control soil moisture 
depletion by selecting water efficient plant species and terminating the cover crop before 
excessive growth, 4.) evaluate the cover crop to determine if the cover crop is meeting the 
planned purposes(s) 5.) if the cover crop is not meeting the purpose(s) adjust the 
management, change the species of cover crop, or choose a different technology. 

e. A producer will not be eligible for cost-share if they have previously received cover-crop cost 
share. An exception, at discretion of technical certification authority, may be if they are 
increasing diversity or trying a new application or termination method. 

 
● Unless otherwise approved by the District Board, a portion of a project becomes ineligible for funding if 
construction begins on that portion before a cost share contract has been approved. 

 
● Upon District Board approval, the applicant will receive a letter with a copy of the executed cost share 
contract stating what practice(s) have been approved, the funding amount, time schedule to start, completion 
date and an Operation and Maintenance Plan (OMP). 
 
● Work on the practice shall not start until the District Board has approved a cost share contract at an official 
meeting.  If work begins before the contract has been approved, the practice is not eligible for funding.   

 



● The project must be completed in compliance with the terms and conditions of the Cost Share Program 
Contract and maintained in compliance with the OMP.  (See Contract and O&M Plan) 

 
● The applicant is responsible to pay, in full, all receipts and invoices directly to the contractor or vendor. 
 
● The funding amount will not exceed the amount specified on the original cost share contract.  The 
landowner, prior to completion of the project, shall obtain a District Board approved contract amendment to 
increase funding amounts depending on available funding. 
 
● At project completion the District Staff or consultant with the proper Job Approval Authority shall verify if the 
practice is complete and meets standards and specifications before final payment is issued.  The applicant 
must submit seed tags, invoices or receipts of actual costs in sufficient detail for the District’s review.  
Requests for reimbursement shall include a Voucher and Practice Certification Summary Form. 
 
● A one-time cost share reimbursement payment will be made upon certification that the project has been 
installed and completed to specifications.  To receive a partial payment the landowner will need to meet with 
technical representative to assess progress of work, submit all invoices from contractors to-date to the Board 
for approval.  
 
● District Technical Standards will follow the most recent NRCS Field Office Technical Guide (FOTG), 
Minnesota Stormwater Manual, or be a professionally accepted engineering or ecological practice.  The District 
will also utilize guidance and technical specifications from agencies such as the MN Department of Natural 
Resources, MN Pollution Control Agency, MN Department of Agriculture, and University of MN, where 
appropriate. 
 
● Compliance inspection intervals will be based on minimum State requirements, the amount of total project 
funding received and the complexity of the project.  District staff will develop a process for compliance 
inspection intervals. 
 
 ● It is the District’s goal to support and leverage federal USDA – Environmental Quality Incentive Program 
(EQIP) funding through the District technical assistance. 
 
● If USDA – Conservation Reserve Program (CRP) dollars are secured for a project, the landowner must sign 
a Freedom of Information Act release form that allows the District access to applicable information with the 
landowners CRP project case file.  
 
● The landowner is responsible for the O&M of practices applied under this program to ensure the 
conservation objective of the practice is achieved for the minimum amount of time specified in the contract. 
 
● If the title to the land where the practice is installed is transferred to another party before the expiration of the 
life of cost share contract, it shall be the responsibility of the land occupier or landowner who signed the 
contract to advise the new owner that the contract is in force. 
 
● The practice shall be seeded according to project design requirements.  Mulching, erosion control blanket or 
other erosion control devices may also be required.  These items shall be completed or agreed to before 
certification and approval of the practice.  A soils test may be required depending on practice or seed mix.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



Policies Applied to the Nonstructural Land Management Practices and Vegetative Practices 
 
1.  Include all the above mentioned 
 
2. A list of some (not all) practices and programs utilizing funds.  Practices shall meet NRCS eFOTG 

standards unless otherwise noted by technical staff. 
a. NRCS eFOTG practices included but not limited to:  314 – Brush Management, 315 – Herbaceous 

Weed Control, 327 – MN Conservation Cover, 338 – Prescribed burning, 342 – Critical Area 
Planting, 666 – Forest Stand Improvement 

b. Vegetative reestablishment between field and forest edge.  NRCS eFOTG practices included but 
not limited to:  386 – Field Border, 327 – Conservation Cover, 338 – Prescribed Burning, 612 – 
Tree/Shrub Establishment and 490 - Tree/Shrub Site Preparation  

c. Buffer Law – assistance with vegetative establishment if CRP is not an option.  NRCS FOTG 
practices included but not limited to:  391- Riparian Forest Buffer, 327 – Conservation Cover, 393 – 
Filter Strip, 386 – Field Border 

d. Contour Strips - NRCS eFOTG practices included but not limited to:  332 – Contour buffer strip 
e. Cover crops - NRCS eFOTG practices included but not limited to: 340 – cover crop 

Priorities 
1. Priority applications will be considered on first-come-first-serve basis 
2. Highest to lowest priorities 

a.  Projects in priority concern areas that can include, but are not limited to, subwatershed planning areas, 
Whitewater Landscape Plan, Zumbro WRAPS, Lower Zumbro Floodplain Areas and Watershed Based 
Implementation Plans. 

b. Projects that are not eligible for other financial assistance 
c. Projects can reach 75% cost-share with only this financial assistance 
d. Projects with other cost-share but needs this funding to get to or closer to 75% 

 
3. Follow prioritization set forth in Non-Structural Land Management Practices (NLMP) 
Implementation policies included herein. 
 
4. Feedlots Projects 

a. Areas identified in local WRAPS and TMDL implementation plans 
b. Feedlots that pose the greatest bacteria pollution potential 
c. Feedlots with proximity or drainage to cold water trout streams 
 

5. Utilize the “PRIORITY WELL CHARACTERISTICS CHECKLIST” to prioritize applications if 
needed (see checklist) 
 

Additional 
• In-kind services and materials provided by the land occupier such as, but not limited to, earthwork, seedbed 
preparation, seeding, and permanent fencing materials may be credited toward the land occupier’s share of 
total eligible cost of the practice not to exceed rates listed in 
the most recent Iowa Farm Custom Rate Survey 
• SWCD District Manager is authorized to approve cover crop contracts do to timing of activity 
• Multiple funds can be used to get landowner to percentage allowed for project 
• Combined financial assistance from the SWCD and all other sources may not exceed 100% 
• Projects funded by Root River One Watershed One Plan (1W1P) Implementation Grant will follow policies set 
by Root River 1W1P Policy Committee 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Adoption 
This Conservation Practices Financial Assistance Policy specifically revokes and replaces all previous SWCD 
financial assistance/cost-share polices related to State Cost-Share, Local Capacity Services Cost-Share and 
Local/County Cost-Share. 

 
SIGNATURE PAGE 
 
Board approved: 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________   ____________________________ 
SWCD Board Chair        Date 
 

  






	P18-7145 Grant Agreement Amendment.pdf
	Wabasha SWCD
	Board of Water and Soil Resources
	By:      _____________________________________
	By:          _____________________________________
	Title:   _____________________________________
	Title:      _____________________________________
	Date:   _____________________________________
	Date:     _____________________________________




